
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Thursday, June 15, 2023



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Charlene Bybee
Chair

Hillary Schieve
Vice Chair

Stephen Ascuaga
Secretary | Treasurer

Andy Chapman
Board Member

Alexis Hill
Board Member

Rick Murdock
Board Member

Jessica Sferrazza
Board Member

Ann Silver
Board Member

Shannon Keel
Board Member



P.O. Box 837  

Reno, NV 89504 USA 

t: 775.827.7600 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

RENO-SPARKS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Thursday, June 15, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 

Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority 
4065 S. Virginia Street, Board Room 

Reno, Nevada 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Councilwoman Charlene Bybee, Chair 

Mayor Hillary Schieve  Commissioner Alexis Hill 
Mr. Stephen Ascuaga  Mr. Rick Murdock 

 Mr. Andy Chapman     Ms. Jessica Sferrazza 
Ms. Shannon Keel   Ms. Ann Silver   

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

THIS NOTICE AND AGENDA HAVE BEEN POSTED PER NRS REQUIREMENT, AT LEAST THREE 
BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE MEETING, IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRS 241.020, AT THE MEETING 

LOCATION AND AT THE FOLLOWING PUBLIC LOCATIONS: 
Evelyn Mount Northeast Community Center Reno City Hall 
Reno Municipal Court Sparks City Hall 

Reno-Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority (RSCVA) McKinley Arts & Culture Center 
Washoe County Administration Building Washoe Co. Reno Downtown Library 
RSCVA Website: www.rscva.com/public-meetings Online at http://notice.nv.gov/ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This meeting is being livestreamed and may be viewed by the public at the following link: www.rscva.com/public-
meetings 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Items on the agenda are for possible action by the Board of Directors unless stated otherwise. Items will 
not necessarily be considered in the order listed. The Board may combine two or more agenda items for 

consideration, may remove an item from the agenda, or may delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time. Pursuant to NRS 241.020(6), supporting material is made available to the general public 

at the same time it is provided to the Board. The designated contact to obtain support materials is Lisa 

Farmer, 4065 South Virginia Street, Suite 100, Reno, NV (775) 827-7618.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

A. OPENING CEREMONIES 
  Call to Order 

  Pledge of Allegiance 
  Roll Call 
 

B. COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC 
Public comment is limited to three minutes. The public is encouraged to comment on all agenda items 

as well as issues not on the agenda during the Public Comment period or on "action" items immediately 
before board discussion of such "action" items. Members of the public desiring to speak must complete 

a "Request to Speak" form and return it to the RSCVA clerk at the meeting. No action may be taken 
on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included 

on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. Public comments may not be accepted after 

the Chairman closes any period for public comment. 
 

 



C. CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Approval of the Agenda of the June 15, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

For Possible Action

2. Approval of the Minutes of the May 25, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

For Possible Action

D. EXECUTIVE UPDATES

D1.  Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority CEO Update 

Charles Harris, President/CEO, will deliver an RSCVA update.  

Informational Only 

E. BOARD MATTERS

E1. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Acquisition of a Portable Indoor Track, 

Indoor Track Equipment and Portable Bleachers (“Indoor Portable Track Project”), and 

Related Potential Payment Options for the Indoor Portable Track Project 
The RSCVA Board of Directors (“the Board”) is being asked to review, discuss, and approve the 

award of the Request for Proposal 2023-OP02 for the acquisition of:  

a) Portable Indoor Track from Truckee Meadows Construction, Inc. in an amount not to
exceed $3,462,390.00;

The Board is being asked to review, discuss, and approve the award of the following: 

b) Portable Bleachers from FSI/Flooring Solutions, Inc in an amount not to exceed
$1,208,630.42, through Sourcewell Contract #091719-HSC; and

The Board is being asked to review, discuss, and approve the award of the following: 

c) Track Equipment from UCS Spirit in an amount not to exceed $376,889.81, through

GSA Contract #GSO-03F-0092V

The combined acquisitions related to the Indoor Portable Track Project total an amount not to exceed 

$5,047,910.23. 

The payment schedule and related payment options for the Indoor Portable Track Project were 
presented to the Finance and Facilities Committee for review and discussion on June 6, 2023. The 
Committee took action to recommend to the full Board of Directors approval to award RFP 2023-OP02 
for the portable indoor track, award of the portable bleachers, and award of track equipment as 
presented with Staff’s recommendation to fund $1.8M out of the FY24 budget using funds from the 
Special Event Opportunity Fund and the Capital Budget. The Committee asked staff to provide a plan 
to fund the remaining expenses in FY25 based on the discussion to share the cost between possible 
FY24 revenues in excess of budget, the FY25 Special Event Opportunity Fund, the FY25 Capital Budget, 
and possible reductions in FY25 department operating budgets.  

For Possible Action 

E2. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Request for Sponsorship of the Incline 
Village Crystal Bay July 4th SkyShow Event 

The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss, and possibly approve a request by 

the Incline Village Crystal Bay July 4th SkyShow Event for sponsorship in an amount not to exceed 
$20,000.  



This item was heard by the RSCVA Board of Directors Finance and Facilities Committee on June 6, 
2023. The Committee took action to recommend approval of the request to the full Board of 
Directors.  

For Possible Action 

E3. Review, Discussion, and Possible Action Regarding Contract Extensions for BVK, Reno 

Tahoe’s Agency of Record and Partner Agency for Paid Media 

The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss, and possibly approve the 
authorization of the President and CEO to execute agreements with BVK for the extension of current 

contracts for Agency of Record (aka Integrated Marketing Agency) in an amount not to exceed 
$340,000 and Paid Media in an amount not to exceed $413,00 for a term not to exceed 12 months. 

This is being requested as the Board at their previous meeting decided to postpone awarding RFP 
2023-MKT02: Agency of Record | Brand Development & Paid Media. 

For Possible Action 

E4. Review, Discussion, and Possible Action to Approve Staff’s Recommendation to Award 
RFP# 2022-MKT02 for Website Search Engine Optimization 

The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss, and possibly approve the 

authorization of the President and Ceo to execute agreements with KPS3 for the work described 
within RFP 2022-MKT02 for professional services related to website search engine optimization in an 

amount not to exceed $120,000 for a term not to exceed 12 months.  

For Possible Action 

E5. Review, Discussion, and Possible Action to Approve Staff’s Recommendation to Allocate 

Certain Expenditures for Air Service Marketing, Media, and Education Initiatives 
The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss, and possibly approve staff’s 

recommendation to allocate certain FY23 expenditures related to marketing and media initiatives to 
acquire, expand, and/or maintain flights targeting airline education, long haul service, and JetBlue 

NYC flight, to the FY23 Air Service Fund.  

For Possible Action 

E6. Review, Discussion, and Possible Action to Approve of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual 

Business Plan 

The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss, provide feedback, and possibly 
approve the annual business plan draft, which will provide staff with specific direction, initiatives, 

and goals for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  

For Possible Action 

E7. Review, Discussion, and Possible Action to (i) Authorize the Chair of the Board of 

Directors to Execute Documents and (ii) Provide Direction Regarding the Interim 
President/CEO.   

The RSCVA Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss and possibly take action to authorize 

the RSCVA Chair, Councilwoman Charlene Bybee, commencing July 1, 2023, to execute documents 

as necessary in place of the RSCVA President/CEO in an amount up to the current signature 
authority of the RSCVA President/CEO, pending appointment of an Interim President/CEO.  In 

addition, the Board is asked to discuss and take possible action to provide direction regarding an 
Interim President/CEO, and, if the Board of Directors desires to appoint an Interim President/CEO, it 

is being asked to provide a list of candidates for the Interim President/CEO position for consideration 

at a future meeting of the Board of Directors.    

For Possible Action 



 

 

 

 
F. APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS 

 

F1. RSCVA Board Appointment of Reno Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) Board of Director’s 
Seat Pursuant to NRS 244A.601(1)(d)(1) 

The elected public official members of the Board of Directors will consider the appointment of a 
representative to the RSCVA Board nominated by the Reno Tahoe Airport Authority. The nominee's 

appointment will become effective July 1, 2023, and will be for one year to fill the unexpired term for 

the seat currently held by Jessica Sferrazza.  The RTAA has submitted the following names for 

consideration: 

 Richard Jay 

 Adam Kramer 

For Possible Action 
 

F2. RSCVA Board Appointment of the Nevada Resort Association (NRA) Board of 

Director'sSeat Pursuant to NRS 244A.601(1)(d)(4)  
The elected public official members of the Board of Directors will consider the appointment of a 

representative to the RSCVA Board nominated by the Nevada Resort Association.  The nominee’s 
appointment will become effective July 1, 2023, and will be for a term of two years.  The NRA has 

submitted the following names for consideration:  

Matt Denning 

John East 

For Possible Action 

 

G. BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS, AND UPDATES 
 RSCVA Board Members may share announcements, reports, updates, and requests for information.  

This item is informational only, and no discussion among Board Members will take place on this 

item.   
 

Informational Only 
 

H. COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC 
 

 Public comment is limited to three minutes. The public is encouraged to comment on all agenda items 
as well as issues not on the agenda during the Public Comment period. No action may be taken on a 

matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on an 

agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.  
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 For Possible Action 
 

 For information or questions regarding this agenda please contact:  

 The RSCVA Executive Office 

 P.O. Box 837, Reno, NV 89504 

 775-827-7618 



To:          RSCVA Board of Directors 

From:   RSCVA Staff 

CC:     RSCVA Finance and Facilities Committee 

Date:    June 15, 2023 

Subject:   Review, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the acquisition of a Portable 
   Indoor Track, Indoor Track Equipment and Portable Bleachers (“Indoor Portable  
   Track Project”).  

Summary 

On June 6, 2023, staff presented the Indoor Portable Track Project and related funding options 
to the Finance and Facilities Committee (“the Committee”). The was approved unanimously and 
the Committee selected their recommended funding options.  

Approval by the Committee is advisory only; this award will not be executed until approval is 
obtained by the RSCVA Board of Directors. 

The Committee’s actions are summarized below.  

Recommended Bid Awards 

The Committee moved to recommend the award of the contract for the Reno-Sparks Convention 
and Visitors Authority, RFP 2023-OP02 Purchase of Portable Indoor Track  to Truckee 
Meadows Construction, Inc., under the terms presented.  

The Committee moved to recommend the award of the proposal for the portable bleachers to 
Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. under the terms presented. 

The Committee moved to recommend the award of the proposal for the indoor track equipment to 
UCS Spirit under the terms presented. 

Recommended Project Funding 

After reviewing and discussing the various funding options presented, the Committee 
recommended the following funding options, which are detailed below along with the full 
payment schedule for the Indoor Portable Track Project.  

ITEM E1



 

 

 
 
Below is the payment schedule for the Indoor Portable Track Project: 
 

 
 
 
 
Below is the combined payment schedule for the Indoor Portable Track Project:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Track Purchase and Installation:

Payment Date Amount Payment Criteria
July 2023            1,373,690.60 Due upon contract execution
October 2024 679,357.25             Due upon track delivery
November 2024            1,409,342.15 Due upon track assembly/substantial completion  

3,462,390.00$         

Telescopic Bleachers Purchase and Setup: 

Payment Date Amount Payment Criteria
July 2023 302,157.62             Due upon order
October 2024 453,236.40             Due upon delivery of bleachers
November 2024              453,236.40 Due upon setup/substantial completion 

1,208,630.42$         

Field Equipment and Setup:

Payment Date Amount Payment Criteria
July 2023 188,444.91             Due upon order
November 2024 188,444.90             Due upon delivery of equipment 

376,889.81$           

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 1,864,293.13$        
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 3,183,617.10$        

Total Cost 5,047,910.23$        



 

 

 
 
As noted above, $1,864,293.13 would be due during Fiscal Year 2023-2024, if the Indoor 
Portable Track Project is approved, based on current bids/proposals.  
 
The Committee evaluated several options for funding this payment, and selected the funding 
option below:    
 

- It is recommended that this payment is funded using the $500,000 Special Event 
Opportunity Fund, with the remainder of the payment being funded from the FY 24 
Capital Budget. 

o If approved, a budget augmentation will be brought forward to the Board at the 
July 2024 Board Meeting, to reclassify these funds to the FY 24 Capital Budget.  

- This option allows for $500k to be preliminarily budgeted towards the Parking Lot 
Resurface Project at the Reno-Sparks Livestock Events Center, pending further 
discussions with the Reno Rodeo Association and the Nevada Western Heritage 
Foundation.   

 

 
 

 

Facility/
Department Item Description Impact of Committee's 

Recommendation 
Current FY 24 Capital 

Projects Budget

RSCC Indoor Portable Track Project Down payment for indoor track, telescopic bleachers, and 
related equipment. 1,364,293$                   -$                           

RSCC Resurface Parking Lot Repave parking lot sections with severe wear. 75,000                           1,000,000                   
RSLEC Resurface Parking Lot Repave parking lot sections with severe wear. 500,000                        500,000                      
RSCC AMR Restroom Remodel Renovate outdated restroom. -                                 400,000                      

RSCC Cooling Tower Repair #3 Repair cooling tower that has completely failed and is no 
longer functioning.  380,000                        380,000                      

RSCC Furniture Replace 20+ year old office furniture. 350,000                        350,000                      
RSCC Runway Windows Refurbish weather strips and install weather deflector. 300,000                        300,000                      
Any Capital Reserve Reserve for unexpected capital items. 250,707                        140,000                      
RSCC Family Restroom Conversion H2A Convert existing restroom to a family restroom. 200,000                        200,000                      
RSCC Sky lights Refurbish sky lights. 150,000                        150,000                      

RSCC Office Windows Replace existing office windows to more efficient windows. -                                 150,000                      

RSCC Hot Water Tank & Heat Exchanger Replace old equipment. 100,000                        100,000                      
RSCVA Admin, RSLEC, 
RSCC, REC, NBS Replacement of Aging IT equipment Replacement of wireless unit, switches, access points, 

firewall, and related items. 100,000                        100,000                      

RSCC Mags Purchase new security mags. 75,000                           75,000                        
REC Replacement Vehicle (Van) Replace 25 year old passenger van. 70,000                           70,000                        
REC Digital sign 1/3 of estimated cost to replace the REC digital sign. 60,000                           60,000                        
RSLEC Vehicle Replacement Replace 20 year old work vehicle. 60,000                           60,000                        
NBS Replacement Vehicle (Truck) Replace 23 year old work vehicle. 60,000                           60,000                        
RSCC Digital Wayfinding Replace old digital displays. 50,000                           50,000                        

Sales 10 X 20 Tradeshow Booth
Modern, professional representation of Reno Tahoe and the 
destination at several National and Regional Convention and 
Tourism Tradeshows. 

50,000                           50,000                        

REC Outdoor Loading Dock Lighting Add and update lighting. 25,000                           25,000                        
RSCC Spike Lights Replace old signage. 20,000                           20,000                        
RSCC Admin Breakroom Reconfigure breakroom and restroom. 15,000                           15,000                        
NBS/REC Tensa Barriers Purchase new crowd control equipment. 14,000                           14,000                        
REC Carpet Shampoo Machine Purchase carpet cleaning equipment. 10,000                           10,000                        
RSCC Dump Bins Replace old dump bin to a new, more efficient style. 9,000                             9,000                         
Sales Sales Office Furniture New furniture items for staff. 5,000                             5,000                         

4,293,000$                   4,293,000$                  



 

 

 
As noted above, $3,183,617.10 would be due during Fiscal Year 2024-2025, if the Indoor 
Portable Track Project is approved, based on current bids/proposals. 
 

The Committee evaluated several options for funding this payment, and selected the funding 
option below:    
 

- This payment is intended to funded through available resources from both FY 24 and 
FY 25:  
o FY 24 Room Tax Revenues in excess of budget 

 During FY 23, the RSCVA brought forward two budget augmentations 
due to room tax revenues that exceeded the original budget. 

 Room tax revenues are budgeted at a slight decrease for FY 24 driven by 
budgeted decreases in ADR and cash occupied rooms. If actual 
performance exceeds those expectations, resulting in room tax revenue 
in excess of budget, those room tax revenues could be saved towards 
the Indoor Portable Track Project payment, rather than allocated to other 
operational areas via a budget augmentation.  

 The Committee recommended only committing a portion of any room tax 
revenues that exceed budget to the Indoor Portable Track Project, given 
that other initiatives may arise during the fiscal year.  

o FY 25 Special Event Opportunity Fund 
 The current strategic plan calls for $500,000 to be budgeted in the Special 

Event Opportunity Fund annually. With Board approval, this funding could 
be used towards the Indoor Track Project Payment.  

o FY 25 Capital Budget 
 Per preliminary projections, the FY 25 Capital Budget would be 

approximately $4,000,000. 
 Staff recommends committing up to $2,000,000 from the FY 25 Capital 

Budget towards the Indoor Track Project payment, given that this would 
allow sufficient remaining funds to be available towards anticipated 
capital projects in FY 25.  

o Evaluation of the FY 25 Operating Budget 
 If there are any remaining amounts due towards the FY 25 Indoor Track 

Project payment, this would be considered during the creation of the FY 
25 budget by evaluating reductions in discretionary spending. 
 The Committee encouraged the creation of preliminary draft of 

these funding options. Staff reviewed the FY 24 Budget in 
comparison to very preliminary FY 25 projections and noted that 
the following reductions in operational areas could be redirected 
towards the Indoor Portable Track Payment in FY 25:  
o Marketing – 7% reduction in leisure media buys 

(approximately $382k)  
o Marketing – Reduction in Website/Email/Organic Social 

Management, given one-time costs in FY 24 associated 
with the creation of a new website (approximately $200k)  

o Sales – Reduction in certain sponsorships and events 
(approximately $166,000) 

o Sales – Reduction in booking incentives (approximately 
$150k)  



 

 

 
 

 Note: The FY 25 budget has not yet been created and will not be 
submitted for approval to the RSCVA Board of Directors until May 2024. 
The above are recommendations to be considered during the creation of 
the FY 25 Budget. 

 
 

Background 
 

A Request for Proposal for the Reno-Sparks Convention Center– Purchase of Portable Indoor 
Track, was released on April 26, 2023. Included in the RFP was the requirement for the 
proposers to submit a Base Bid with additions and deductions for synthetic surfacing. The Base 
Bid included design, fabrication, and assembly of the Portable Indoor Track. The track must also 
meet all of the NFHS, NCAA, USATF, and WA rules and regulations.  
 
On May 9, two proposals were submitted to the RSCVA from: CG & B Enterprises, Inc. and 
Truckee Meadows Construction, Inc. Staff evaluated the proposals and concluded that CG&B’s 
bid was non-responsive regarding the requirements set forth in RFP 2023-OP02. Truckee 
Meadows Construction, Inc. met all the necessary requirements set forth in the RFP.  
 
The RSCVA received a proposal for Telescopic Portable Bleachers that staff would like to 
purchase from Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. under the Sourcewell Contract #091719-HSC. 
Sourcewell serves government, education, and nonprofit organizations with a cooperative 
purchasing program that manages competitive solicitations that meet or exceed local 
requirements. 
 
The RSCVA received a proposal for indoor track equipment that staff would like to purchase 
from  UCS Spirit under GSA Contract #GSO-03F-0092V. GSA is the General Services 
Administration  which services the U.S. Federal Government to help manage and support the 
basic functioning of federal agencies. GSA supplies products and communications for U.S. 
government offices and develops government-wide-cost-minimizing policies and other 
management tasks.  

 
 

      Recommendation 
 

Based on the staff’s evaluation of the qualifying proposal received, staff recommends the award 
of RFP 2023-OP01 to Truckee Meadows Construction, Inc, in the amount of three million four 
hundred sixty-two thousand three hundred ninety dollars ($3,462,390), FSI / Flooring Solutions, 
Inc, in the amount of one million two hundred eight thousand six hundred thirty dollars and 
forty-two cents ($1,208,630.42), UCS Spirit, in the amount of three hundred seventy-six 
thousand eight hundred eighty-nine dollars and eighty-one cents ($376,889.81).  
This was also recommended by the Finance and Facilities Committee on June 6, 2023, in an 
advisory capacity.  
 

 



 

 

 

Proposed Motion 
 
I move to award the contract for the Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority, RFP 2023-
OP02 Purchase of Portable Indoor Track to Truckee Meadows Construction, Inc., under the 
terms presented.  

 
I move to award the proposal for the portable bleachers to Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. under 
the terms presented. 
 
I move to award the proposal for the indoor track equipment to UCS Spirit under the terms 
presented. 

 
 



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any operation or product not specifically listed above is not included in price and will be a change order. 
Exclusions and clarifications see attached CRI 104 – 2002 sections 7 and 9.2. 
 
We propose hereby to furnish materials and labor, 
Complete in accordance with above specifications, for the SUM of:   $        
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

“To develop long term relationships in 
our community, with integrity, while 

providing quality services and product 
for a complete flooring package.” 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635   

                                                                                                      *****Scope of work*****  --  Hussey Sourcewell # 091719-HSC 
                                                                                                                                                           RSCVA Member # 181921 
 
FURNISH AND INSTALL:  
 

1) BANK A  - TELECOPIC  FREE STANDING PORTABLE BLEACHER SYSTEM – 9 SECTIONS 
A) GROSS SEATS ---   1638 
B) NET SEATS ---------- 1197 
C) 10” COURTSIDE SEATS    COLOR: TBD 
D) TIERS  - 2 – 13 
E) RISE ------------------– 9 5/8  
F) ROW SPACING -----  26”  
G) BANK LENGTH  176.4 FT   ( 179.4FT  WITH END RAILS )  
H) SECTIONS : 9  
I) AISLES: 9 
J) POWER : T1 POWER 
K) PENDENT CONTROL 
L) FULL SECTION TRUNCATION 

 
                    GRAND TOTAL    $    1,208,630.42  
 
• ADD 3% TO BASE BID IF P&P BOND IS REQUIRED  
                   
 
ADDITIONAL ITEMS INCLUDED  
 
1) ETO 1  ----------    PORTABLE HUSSEY HD AIR LIFT DOLLY  
2) ETO 12  --------     VINYL REAR CURTAINS  
3) ETO 6  ----------      RAIL CARTS  
4) ETO 5  ------------   RUBBER GAP CLOSURES  
5) ETO 13 ----------     SECTION COVERS WHEN NOT IN USE  

 
 
*** FSI MEETS ALL NEVADA REVISED STATUES   -- NRS – 338  ( 50% OF FSI EMPLOYEES HOLDS NEVADA DRIVERS LICENSE  ) 
*** FSI IS A  MINORITY WOMEN BUSINESS – SELF CERTIFIED  
 
*** Deposit and payment schedule  *** 

1) 1st Payment  -------------------------------------------------------------------------------25% deposit  ( $ 1,208,630.42 )    =   $ 302,157.62 
2) If P&P bond is required then add 3% to Grand  Total  of  ( $ 1,208,630.42 )  -----------------------------------    =   $   36,258.91 

** This is based on Surety approval once contract is issued . This gets added to 1st deposit if required   ** 
3)  Balance to be Progress payments upon arrival of goods  after completion of project  

A) 2nd Payment due upon arrival of goods onsite ( appx Oct 2024 ) ---------------------- 50%  of balance =   $  453,236.40 
B) 3rd and Final payment  due after completion of project ------------------------------------  Balance left      =   $  453,236.40 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted To:      
RENO / TAHOE  
 
Address:      
4001 SOUTH VIRGINIA STREET    SUITE G 
 

Attention:      
SHELLI , MICHAEL,AMY 

City, State, and Zip Code:      
RENO , NEVADA   89502 
 

Date:      
2023 
 

Phone and Fax:      
1-775-827-7790  1-775-827-7608 
 
Project Name:    
RENO / TAHOE  - SPORTS FACILITY TELESCOPIC SEATING  
 

Project City and State      
 
 

Email:      
sfine@renotahoeusa.com 
 

Project Mailing Address:      
 
 
 Architect:      

FSI  - SPORTS ( Hussey & Mondo )  
 

Date of Plans or Revision:    
 
 

“To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing 
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

Page 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

“To develop long term relationships in 
our community, with integrity, while 

providing quality services and product 
for a complete flooring package.” 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635   

 “To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing   
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

                                                                                                      *****Scope of work***** 
 
 
                                                                      *** CERTIFICATIONS  **     
 

FSI IS A CERTIFIED GERFLOR INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ARDEX/HENRY SYSTEM ONE DEALER 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FORBO INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ECO GRIP DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED HUSSEY DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED SPALDING DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER AV SCREEN DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SHADE DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED JAYPRO SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED LIST / ART METAL LOCKER DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED MONDO RUBBER FLOOR DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED CONNOR SPORTS DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FSI IMPACT ATHLETIC DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A TARKETT INDOOR SPORTS DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A STURDI STEEL OUTDOOR BLEACHER DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CP TURF SPORTS TURF DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A ALL AMERICAN SCOREBOARD / VIDEO SCREEN DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 

                           FSI IS A SIDELINE INTERACTIVE -  LED SCORETABLES DEALER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



  

        

 

 “To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing   
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635 

                                                                                                     *****Scope of work**** 
 
 
                                                                      *** CERTIFICATIONS  **     
 

FSI IS A CERTIFIED GERFLOR INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ARDEX/HENRY SYSTEM ONE DEALER 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FORBO INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ECO GRIP DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED HUSSEY DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED SPALDING DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER AV SCREEN DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SHADE DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED JAYPRO SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED LIST / ART METAL LOCKER DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED MONDO RUBBER FLOOR DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED CONNOR SPORTS DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FSI IMPACT ATHLETIC DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A TARKETT INDOOR SPORTS DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A STURDI STEEL OUTDOOR BLEACHER DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CP TURF SPORTS TURF DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A ALL AMERICAN SCOREBOARD / VIDEO SCREEN DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 

                           FSI IS A SIDELINE INTERACTIVE -  LED SCORETABLES DEALER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

Page 54

mailto:apickens@renotahoeusa.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any operation or product not specifically listed above is not included in price and will be a change order. 
Exclusions and clarifications see attached CRI 104 – 2002 sections 7 and 9.2. 
 
We propose hereby to furnish materials and labor, 
Complete in accordance with above specifications, for the SUM of:   $        
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

“To develop long term relationships in 
our community, with integrity, while 

providing quality services and product 
for a complete flooring package.” 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635   

 
*****Scope of work***** 

 
 
 
                                                                                       *** CERTIFICATIONS  ** 
 
 
 

FSI IS A CERTIFIED GERFLOR INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ARDEX/HENRY SYSTEM ONE DEALER 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FORBO INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ECO GRIP DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED HUSSEY DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED SPALDING DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER AV SCREEN DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SHADE DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED JAYPRO SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED LIST / ART METAL LOCKER DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED MONDO RUBBER FLOOR DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED CONNOR SPORTS DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FSI IMPACT ATHLETIC DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A TARKETT INDOOR SPORTS DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A STURDI STEEL OUTDOOR BLEACHER DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CP TURF SPORTS TURF DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A ALL AMERICAN SCOREBOARD / VIDEO SCREEN DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 

                           FSI IS A SIDELINE INTERACTIVE -  LED SCORETABLES DEALER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing 
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

Page 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any operation or product not specifically listed above is not included in price and will be a change order. 
Exclusions and clarifications see attached CRI 104 – 2002 sections 7 and 9.2. 
 
We propose hereby to furnish materials and labor, 
Complete in accordance with above specifications, for the SUM of:   $        
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
  Bryan E Price 
Signature_____________________________________________________ VICE PRESIDENT 

 

“To develop long term relationships in 
our community, with integrity, while 

providing quality services and product 
for a complete flooring package.” 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635 

 

 “To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing   
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

 
 
                                                                                       *** CERTIFICATIONS  ** 
 
 
 

FSI IS A CERTIFIED GERFLOR INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ARDEX/HENRY SYSTEM ONE DEALER 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FORBO INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED ECO GRIP DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED HUSSEY DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED SPALDING DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER AV SCREEN DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED DRAPER SHADE DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED JAYPRO SPORTS EQUIPMENT DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED LIST / ART METAL LOCKER DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED MONDO RUBBER FLOOR DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED CONNOR SPORTS DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CERTIFIED FSI IMPACT ATHLETIC DEALER & INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A TARKETT INDOOR SPORTS DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A STURDI STEEL OUTDOOR BLEACHER DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A CP TURF SPORTS TURF DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 
FSI IS A ALL AMERICAN SCOREBOARD / VIDEO SCREEN DEALER AND INSTALLATION SHOP 

                           FSI IS A SIDELINE INTERACTIVE -  LED SCORETABLES DEALER 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 56



 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

FSI / Flooring Solutions of NV, Inc. 
 

4275 W. Reno Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 
Phone 702.399.9003 Fax 702.399.9004 

 
Nevada Contractors License #’s 52766,55710,67009,72063 & 74635 

 

 “To develop long term 
relationships in our community, 
with integrity, while providing   
high quality services and products 
for a complete package.” 

   ***** Inclusions, Exclusions and Clarifications   ***** 
Inclusions 

1. Proposal includes sales tax, normal job stocking, regular business hours installation and our one year installation warranty. 
2. Basic floor prep for NEW CONSTRUCTION ONLY is inclusive of expansion joints and holes no bigger than a dime ( see Exclusions Line Item # 9 ) 

a) Resilient Products appx 1 bag of Ardex SDF -- 1 man hour @   Appx. 250 – 350 sq. ft.  figured 
b) Carpet Broadloom appx 1 bag of Ardex SDF – 1 man hour @   Appx. 750 – 1,000 sq. ft. figured 
c) Remodel , TI or any other type of renovation is to be determined by existing site conditions and scope of work 

 
Exclusions 

1. Overtime and/or Premium time. 
2. Removal of contaminants from existing substrate (paint, drywall mud etc.)  Vacuuming. ( See clarifications line item 1,2 ) 
3. Bonds, Permits and Licensing Fees. Unless noted as a line item on FSI’s original proposal 
4. More than one mobilization. Moving of furniture or fixtures 
5. Demolition unless noted on original proposal. 
6. Washing or waxing of VCT or other resilient flooring. 
7. Moisture testing, moisture protection. Work out of sequence (see clarifications line item # 4). 
8. Heating and cooling, lighting and floor protection. ( see clarifications below line # 3 ,5 ) 
9. Major floor prep such as: grinding, leveling, bead blasting, sanding, underlayment, skim floating, or anything bigger than a dime sized hole 
10. CONCRETE MUST MEET FLATNESS REQUIRED IN SPECIFICATIONS OR MANUFACTURER  FSI is not responsible for determining tolerances 
11. Waterproofing, anti-fracture membrane, or scaling  
12. No downtime due to any badging, orientation meetings or OSHA 
13. Travel time and per diem not included in price unless otherwise stated on proposal. 

 
Clarifications 

1. Per CRI 7.1:  The owner or general contractor is responsible for providing an acceptable substrate for the specified installation. 
2. Per CRI 9.2: Concrete to be free of cures, retardants, or sealers and to be smooth hard - troweled finish. Floors should be protected prior to our arrival. Any    

stripping or clean up required prior to the start of work due to negligence or other trades(i.e. paint, drywall, mud, etc.) will be billed on a time and material    
basis. – NOTE: While some floor prep is “normal” it is not the floor covering installation contractor’s responsibility to correct the deficiencies in the work of other 
tradesmen. 

3. Per CRI 7.2:  Carpet ETC must be installed when the indoor temperature is between 65-95 deg. F with a maximum relative humidity of 65%  If ambient temperatures 
are outside these parameters, the installation must not begin until the HVAC system is operational and these conditions are maintained at least 48 hrs. before, during 
and 72 hrs after completion. 

4.  Per CRI 7.10: Before making an adhesive - adhered installation, the owner or general contractor, or their designated agent must submit to the flooring contractor a 
written report on the vapor emission level and the surface alkalinity of concrete subflooring. 

5. JOBSITE CONDITIONS must have an acclimated environment (PERMANENT HVAC) prior to moisture tests or installation of material. Temp heat, A/C is not 
accepted according to ASTM Standards 

6. Pricing is predicated on design, scope of work and square footage, as well as consecutive work days, uninterrupted by other trades.  
7. The square footage herein is the basis for the cost proposal, any dramatic increase or decrease to the footage will result in a change order increasing or decreasing the 

contract amount. 
8. Union Labor Rates apply ONLY to the scopes of work within C16 #52766 License “FINISHING FLOORS” (ex. - carpet & resilient). Unless the project to bid specifies 

otherwise, ALL other quoted labor (C20, C26B, C26C, C3B, & C10) will reflect NON-Union Labor Rates.  Work is expected to occur during the regular “work week” 
Monday thru Friday, 6:00 am to 4:30 pm. If the construction schedule changes requiring unusual work hrs, weekend or overtime work, those additional costs will need to 
be authorized in writing by the general contractor prior to the work commencing. 

9. Excludes permit fees, bonding, traffic control, temporary utilities (including climate control), moisture problems inherent to existing conditions. 
10. Material and Labor lead time may be as much as six to eight weeks.  All out of town work will require a two week lead time for all travel and freight arrangements. If we 

do not receive this lead time a change order will be issued to cover additional costs. 
11. We expect to be provided the entire work area to perform our work uninterrupted by others from start to finish. If we are required to stop work or are delayed at any time 

we will expect to be compensated for all cost incurred as a result of work stoppage. 
12. Our pricing and manpower schedules have been priced utilizing a union work force and is based upon the international trade agreement. Any special requirements 

implemented by the local trade unions that effects our costs or ability to perform work will constitute a change order. 
13. If deposits are required by any Vendor or Manufacturer, then client will pay such amount required. 
14. This Budget Proposal expires after thirty (30) days from issued date. 

 
Labor Rates 

1. $99.34 Regular Time Monday – Friday from 6am to 3pm not to exceed 8 hrs. in one shift 
2. $134.20  Time and a Half After 8 hrs. regular time, after 3pm M-F and Saturday 6am to 3pm not to exceed 8 hrs. in one shift 
3. $169.06 Double Time Over 11 hrs. M-F from 6am to 3pm, over 8 hrs. of time and a half, Saturday nights and Sundays’ 

 
Acceptance of Proposal: The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory 
and are hereby ACCEPTED. You are authorized to do the work as specified. 
Flooring Solutions of Nevada 
 
Authorized Signature__________________________________________             Date____________________________________________ 
 
 
Printed Name/Title____________________________________________             Accepted_________________ Approved_______________ 

Page 57



Reno-Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority
GSA SCHEDULE NUMBER: 78

CONTACT: Amy Pickens GSA CONTRACT NUMBER: GSO-03F-0092V
Phone # 775.335.8839 Contract Payment Terms: 50% Deposit and

Email: apickens@renotahoeusa.com  1%/10 days;  or  Net/30

Date: Thursday, May 11, 2023

GSA Product No. Description QT.
 Price

(ea)
Extended

Track Oval & Sprint Lanes

SIN  505-5507 UCS Ultimate Series Automatic Hurdles- 47" Boards 60 542.80$          32,568.00$             

 192-02 Color of Tubes:
505-STUP-DP Hurdle Screen Initial Set up Charge--One Time 1 136.68$          136.68$                  

505-PRINT Hurdle Screen Charge per Board 60 5.47$              328.20$                  

Screened:

SIN 192-02 526-1550NAV
Gold Series Hurdle Dolly with Handle- Holds 10 - Made for UCS Intl and 

Ultimate Hurdles -- Color:Navy 6 542.80$          3,256.80$               

SIN 192-02 715-1500 UCS Grand Prix Starting Blocks 20 412.37$          8,247.40$               

SIN 192-02 526-4100 UCS Starting Block Caddy - Holds 10 2 1,324.58$       2,649.16$               

SIN 192-02 569-2208CG UCS Lane Markers for Lanes 1-8 with Custom Graphic 1 1,347.23$       1,347.23$               

SIN 192-02 524-2200 Lap Counter with Bell--Tilt 'N Roll Capability 1 783.34$          783.34$                  

SIN 192-02 569-3450 UCS Starters Rostrum 1 912.99$          912.99$                  

SIN  569-3710NAV UCS Relay Batons--Set of 12-Color: NAVY 2 173.38$          346.76$                  

 192-02 Custom Screened:
SIN 192-02 569-2360 Red Official's Flag 12 21.09$            253.08$                  

SIN 192-02 569-2362 White Official's Flag 12 21.09$            253.08$                  

Open Market 569-4625 6" Cones (Orange) 40 8.00$              320.00$                  

Open Market 569-7759 Portable ADA Ramp with Hand Rail and Rubber Surfacing
-12' with landing- 48" wide

2 11,490.00$     22,980.00$             

Open Market 569-3595 Officials Elevated Chairs 6 1,900.00$       11,400.00$             

Pole Vault

SIN  Pole Vault Landing Area - 21'6"x31'1"x32"
 192-02 503-2100  Including 2” Top Pad & VTX 1000 Anti-shift Velcro-Fastening System-- 2 26,437.63$     52,875.26$             

GRY/NAV Measures 22'4" Behind Box 

Color:      Grey/ Navy TOP PAD                     
SIN 192-02 503-LGTP Logo Application to Top Pad-Pole Vault 2 937.20$          1,874.40$               

SIN 192-02 503-6100 UCS Pole Vault Box Collar System- NCAA/ NFHS Legal 2 580.28$          1,160.56$               

SIN  Pole Vault Standards 10'-21'     Color:  Grey
 192-02 510-1021 Complete with Base Protection Pads and Extenders 2 5,379.53$       10,759.06$             

(Total Effective Height w, Extenders is 7'-21')
SIN 192-02 755-133 UCS/Spirit Pole Vault Crossbar 10 85.91$            859.10$                  

Open Market 569-4001 Bungee Crossbar 4 42.95$            171.80$                  

SIN 192-02 569-4010 Crossbar Placer- telescopic (PAIR) 3 280.38$          841.14$                  

SIN 192-02 526-4700 UCS/ Spirit Vaulting Pole Cart 2 2,714.76$       5,429.52$               

SIN 192-02 525-6100 Pole Tree 2 481.10$          962.20$                  

SIN 192-02 525-6200 Chalk Stand 1 743.51$          743.51$                  

SIN 192-02 U-H-CHALK-FL Universal Hand Chalk 8 23.43$            187.44$                  

Open Market 510-9100L Pole Vault Measuring Device w/ Laser 2 850.00$          1,700.00$               

SIN 192-02 524-2400 4-Digit Indicator Board--Tilt 'N Roll Capability 2 991.09$          1,982.18$               

SIN 192-02 524-2250 Pole Vault Standard Indicator Board 2 749.76$          1,499.52$               

SIN 192-02 801-2620 UCS 12" LED Countdown Timer w/Trolley 2 2,565.59$       5,131.18$               

SIN  525-1607 UCS PRO STYLE Team Bench - 7' 6"  with Back Rest 4 717.74$          2,870.96$               

 192-02 Color:
High Jump

SIN  1390 High Jump Pit - 24' 4" x 13' 2" x28"     Color:  Grey/ Navy 2 12,653.76$     25,307.52$             

 192-02 GRY/NAV  Including 2” Top Pad & VTX 1000 Anti-shift Velcro-Fastening System
SIN 192-02 501-LGTP Logo Application to Top Pad-High Jump 2 937.20$          1,874.40$               

SIN 192-02 510-8701  Grand Prix High Jump Standards-7"(18cm)- 8'5"(2.56cm)-Pair 2 1,615.11$       3,230.22$               

SIN 192-02 755-132 UCS/Spirit High Jump Crossbar 10 85.91$            859.10$                  

Open Market 569-4001 Bungee Crossbar 4 42.95$            171.80$                  

SIN 192-02 510-9000 High Jump Measuring Device 2 493.59$          987.18$                  

SIN 192-02 524-2400 4-Digit Indicator Board--Tilt 'N Roll Capability 2 991.09$          1,982.18$               

SIN 192-02 801-2620 UCS 12" LED Countdown Timer w/Trolley 2 2,565.59$       5,131.18$               

SIN  525-1607 UCS PRO STYLE Team Bench - 7' 6"  with Back Rest 4 717.74$          2,870.96$               

 192-02 Color:

PRICE QUOTATION

 Price Quote CONFIDENTIAL 5/17/2023 Pg. 1 of 3Page 58



Long/Triple Jump

SIN 192-02 569-1910 Great Rake - 36" Wide 4 89.03$            356.12$                  

SIN 192-02 569-1940 General Purpose Broom 4 77.32$            309.28$                  

SIN 192-02 528-2050 Open Reel Measuring Tape - Fiberglass 165' (Runway) 4 41.39$            165.56$                  

SIN 192-02 528-2230 Open Reel Measuring Tape - Fiberglass 100' (Sand) 4 32.80$            131.20$                  

SIN 192-02 528-3030 Open Reel Measuring Tape - Steel 100' (Sand) 2 53.89$            107.78$                  

SIN 192-02 569-2160 Long Jump Indicator Board (Imperial at sand pit) 2 1,015.30$       2,030.60$               

SIN 192-02 569-2170 Triple Jump Indicator Boards (Imperial at sand pit) 2 1,015.30$       2,030.60$               

SIN 192-02 801-2620 UCS 12" LED Countdown Timer w/Trolley 2 2,565.59$       5,131.18$               

SIN 192-02 524-2400 4-Digit Indicator Board--Tilt 'N Roll Capability 2 991.09$          1,982.18$               

SIN  525-1607 UCS PRO STYLE Team Bench - 7' 6"  with Back Rest 4 717.74$          2,870.96$               

 192-02 Color:
Throwing Events (Shot Put & Weight Throw)

UCS Futura Indoor Throwing Events Cage-Self-Standing   
SIN 192-02 570-7200 with Wheels-  Complete with Net 1 29,937.60$     29,937.60$             

22' Tall with Clam Shell Movement

Open 725-2570-.75 UCS Indoor Shot Put Platform 1 3,100.00$       3,100.00$               

Market Includes UCS Shot Put Toe Board (716-1630)-- Color:
SIN 192-02 716-1630 UCS Aluminum Shot Put Toe Board 3 1/4"- 1 488.13$          488.13$                  

For all Depressed Shot Put Rings
Open 

Market
509-1276

Implement Barrier 72"L x 46"T x 24"W
Color: White                        

30 769.00$          23,070.00$             

Open 

Market
590-2106-16

UCS 16'  Barrier Integrated Ball Stopping System                                                                                        
Typical Spacing between posts 20'

180 117.00$          21,060.00$             

***(Includes Top cable with snaps)*** Lin ft   = 2 Runs of 90' ea

Open 

Market
509-1276

Implement Barrier 72"L x 46"T x 24"W
Color: White                        

12 769.00$          9,228.00$               

Open Market 509-1276-CRNR Implement Barrier Corner Piece 2 769.00$          1,538.00$               

Open Market 509-1276-CNCT Implement Barrier Connector 46 35.00$            1,610.00$               

SIN 192-02 525-6200 Chalk Stand 1 743.51$          743.51$                  

SIN 192-02 801-2620 UCS 12" LED Countdown Timer w/Trolley 1 2,565.59$       2,565.59$               

SIN 192-02 528-3201 Sector Line Tape - White 2 67.17$            134.34$                  

SIN 192-02 528-2030 Open Reel Measuring Tape - Fiberglass 100' 2 28.12$            56.24$                    

SIN 192-02 528-3030 Open Reel Measuring Tape - Steel 100' 2 53.89$            107.78$                  

SIN 192-02 726-2600 Implement Certification Unit 1 4,338.46$       4,338.46$               

Open Market 515-8009 Indoor Weight Throw Gauge 1 300.00$          300.00$                  

SIN 192-02 524-2400 4-Digit Indicator Board--Tilt 'N Roll Capability 1 991.09$          991.09$                  

SIN 192-02 569-2271 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (12m-39') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2272 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (14m-46') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2273 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (16m-52') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2274 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (18m-59') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2275 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (20m-66') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2276 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (22m-72') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2277 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (24m-79') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN 192-02 569-2278 Short Throws Distance Marker Box (26m-85') 1 89.03$            89.03$                    

SIN  525-1607 UCS PRO STYLE Team Bench - 7' 6"  with Back Rest 2 717.74$          1,435.48$               

 192-02 Color:
SIN 192-02 526-4300 Shot Put Cart-- Holds 18-24 2 849.73$          1,699.46$               

Open 525-8421 UCS Double Plank Tilt 'N Roll Bleachers - 21'- 4 Row 2 6,200.00$       12,400.00$             

Market Seats 56          Color:
Meet Management & Miscellaneous

SIN 192-02 526-3510 5' x 10' Aluminum Pit Cart 2 2,535.13$       5,070.26$               

SIN 192-02 569-3529CG Award Stand - 9 Places with Logo 1 4,027.62$       4,027.62$               

SIN 192-02 526-4247 Utility Cart 3 246.02$          738.06$                  

SIN  525-1607 UCS PRO STYLE Team Bench - 7' 6"  with Back Rest 10 717.74$          7,177.40$               

 192-02 Color:
Sub-Total: 364,889.81$           

Shipping fees are calculated considering standard delivery Shipping 12,000.00$            
environments.  Special situations will require additional fees.

Customer is responsible for all applicable State taxes. Taxes 
TOTAL 376,889.81$       

ALL Prices in U.S. Dollars

PROUDLY MADE IN THE USA- Direct from our doors to yours with no compromise- Proven  for over 45 Years

UCS Will Provide onsite assistance with 1 factory rep, at time of delivery, and also for set-up of equipment, providing

hands on training for set up and use of the equipment. In addition to any on call service,should it be needed, by local

representation.

 Price Quote CONFIDENTIAL 5/17/2023 Pg. 2 of 3Page 59



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

•         Shipping fees are calculated considering standard delivery environments. Special situations such as inside delivery
           lift gate service, etc will require additional fees.
•         Shipping quote is based on today's current rate and is subject to change due to fluctuation in fuel.
•         Split shipments allowed by request- shipped items will be billed accordingly with agreed payment terms and shipping costs

Signature/ and Date
•         Truck drivers are not required to provide assistance unloading the truck when delivery arrives.  Please be sure to have 
           enough people and/ or proper equipment for unloading upon delivery or ask for special services when placing order.
When Shipment is received : observe the entire shipment for visible damage & the correct number of pieces
      Notate any damage or shortage on all copies of the freight bill
      Sign for the number of pieces, not the number of pallets
      Unpack immediately to check for possible damage.  If damage (hidden/ concealed) is discovered, save the packaging, 
       immediately report the damage to carrier & request an inspection.  Follow up the request in writing and call our office at 800-526-4856
       ALL FAT PADS, TRAINING PITS, POLE VAULT AND/OR HIGH JUMP LANDING AREAS MUST BE OPENED UPON ARRIVAL

Returns : Do not return damaged items to UCS without prior written authorization and a provided RMA number
      Product must be new, unused, and in original packaging.  Custom manufactured and made to order products are not returnable
      Return must be made within 30 days of product delivery/ receipt by you.  A restock fee may be charged for these returns.  
      Customer is responsible for return shipping charges.
      Credit will be given to your account or credit card within 10 days of receipt of your product at UCS
•         Please specify all colors when placing order and confirm all quantities.
•         All PO's subject to Credit Approval, First time orders may be subject to pre-pay basis.
•         Architecture approved submittals are required for all projects and UCS will not enter orders until confirmed by the contractor.
•         Contractor is responsible for obtaining all current and up to date installation instructions for all models.

To Secure an order, email a PO to debbieh@ucsspirit.com and your sales rep in copy accompanied by this Quote

If you have any questions or need any other assistance, do not hesitate to contact me at: (704) 732-9922.

Kindest Regards,

Mike Chappell
E-Mail: michaelc@ucsspirit.com
Quote Is Valid for 35 Days

 Price Quote CONFIDENTIAL 5/17/2023 Pg. 3 of 3Page 60





������ � � � � � � � � � � � ���������	
	������������������������������������������������������� ���������������!�����"��������#�$��������%�&�����'(�"����������"�����!�����%����#�����"��&���"� "��������� ���"����������#�$�)�����*����!�����!����������&����"��������&+�#�$���������,,-�*�������!�����.�����������!�%���������!��$����"��&��������������/012303�/45�03/6�7/80/94�:;�013�634<=�7>:==�7:?40>@�/45�0>/7A�B�;9325���$�+�#����)�)�����"���������)�&&�$������&&�*��*�������&�"&&����������&&�+��C��������"�$�����*�!�������D�&!�C"���#�)���&��*���$������������"������������C"�!�"� ���"�������!�.� �E�"�����F��&�����$�$�����!�������&�����������������+�G�����#��������������H��������"����!�������	


����	

,�.� EF�%����&��������I&�$��"�����������������$�����������������*�������&!��!����&&��F����)������������ ���������H������)��������C �J�.� EF+���E��������������������������������������&�*"��!���K��&���"�L�J�)��"�����)����������������"&&����������I&�$��"��J�������������E������+�#�)��������$��������������&������%����)����)��)�����&�����������"�����������&&���������"��!��$�����G��������������$�+�M���*������&��)��������&����)��"������������������$�������&���������������$N��*���""���������������������$��!����������*�$+�E���!�����"��"���$�"��$�"����������%��������%�������"������������&���������)�����������������!����!������&�$�������"�������������O$���P���)��"���������!������I&�$���������"�����Q+���*�����&���������"�����������������*�&�����!��&�����������)������"+�!�&&���������������$��&����"�������)���)����������"��������&&�)��+��E����������������)�R�D����D'����&���������"��������)�&&�"�$�+��E������$���*����)�&&�����&���("�����(��"������+�D��)�&&�*���������$����&&�����&�"&�$������������"����������������J�&���&������������&������������&������J�����$���&����*��������E��"����H���)��������"�&+�E����(��������������������)�&&����������&�������"�����������������+���E���%�  ����&�����*�!���������!����������������#���*���&���������&�"�$���������$����+�E���.� EF����&�����*�!���������!������������&���������$������"�$���������$����+��������*��N����������������������)�&&�*����$��������"��������&����������������������&���� &��S���S����%�)�H�(�"�+�E����"���$�"��$�"����������!��$������&�����������)��&�����$�������)�&&�����$$�����&�����������'�C%���T���%����������"����*�+�������������!���������"���$������*���������������������&��)������"�������������"�U�E�����)�&&���������������$�"���������&&�����&�"&����������*���"���&�����������"�����!��&����&�����)����"�$$�������������R����������������0:�013�VWXYZ<=�:>9[94/2�69==9:4�0:�����"������S�&�����!�&�!������"���N����&����*����������*���+��E����$������������*&��*�������������������������������E�����������*������*����������������!���)��&��"&�������������"�������,\
�)������I&�$��"�+�]19=�0>/7A<=�=?>;/73�/45�7:4=0>?709:4�̂922�73>0/942@����������������!���$�+�_���)�&&�*������)����������������*���"���&��$�������"�&&�*�����������)��&�����I&�$��"���"�����!��&��"�$������"�$�������*����������������E���+����&���������"����������E����)�&&���"�$��#������E�"�������.� +��E��������*���!�������"�����&��"��������������������%�&���+�

àbbcd�edfgabh�ijjh�kldmnocpd�̀cqdmoaq�rst�uddgdvtdqh�jggamcsod�̀cqdmoaq�usqoo�̀spcgh�jggcgosbo�̀cqdmoaq�waqc�waoogh�ijjh�jggcgosbo�̀cqdmoaq� xcs�ynbzdqh�jzvcbcgoqsocpd�jggcgosbo�{snf�jbzdqgabh�wd|sf�}anbgdf�ua~�eaqo�qcz|dh�}�jjh��ano�dqb�}aaqzcbsoaq�uqszt�is||cah������a����aqog�{qa�dqocdg�����������������������������������������������������cmoaqcsb�{fs�s�}cqmfd�����sq�gh�edpszs����������  ¡¢��¡�£¤¥¤¦�§�̈¨̈ �bcss�mav�



RSCVA Board of Directors
June 6th, 2023 

Item:  Discussion and Possible Action to Approve $20,000 Sponsorship for the Incline Village Crystal 

Bay July 4th SkyShow Event. 

Background:  The Incline Village Crystal Bay SkyShow debuted July 4th, 2022 with a new, innovative and 

environmentally friendly way to celebrate the founding of our Nation.  200 drones lit up the sky with 

patriotic and Lake Tahoe themed imagery along with an atmospheric laser show, DJ music and related 

event activities.  The decision to move away from traditional pyrotechnic fireworks was made in 

consideration of fire and environmental concerns, shifting a longstanding tradition with an innovative 

new approach. The celebration is a joint effort between Travel North Tahoe Nevada (TNTNV), Incline 

Village General Improvement District (IVGID), the Incline Village Crystal Bay Community & Business 

Association (IVCBA), the Hyatt Regency Lake Tahoe and the Parasol Tahoe Community Foundation.  This 

year’s July 4th event will be brighter and better with improvements implemented from the learnings from 

the inaugural year.  This year we have increased the number of drones to 250 to provide more detailed 

and experiential displays, amplified the laser show production, development of a food and beverage 

plaza and increased event activities.  Additional information is detailed below: 

1. The SkyShow committee is made up various members of the community including IVGID, Parasol
Tahoe Foundation, Incline Village Crystal Bay Business Association, Travel North Tahoe Nevada
and various community members.

2. The drone show move was, and continues to be, supported by Washoe County, Washoe County
Sheriff Office, North Tahoe Fire Protection District, The League to Save Lake Tahoe, UC Davis
Tahoe Environmental Research Center and others.

3. Last year was our first drone show after a hiatus from any pyrotechnic displays in 2020 and 2021
(which this same group produced in 2019).  We learned much from that first show that is being
incorporated into this year’s program.  This includes a 25% increase in drones to create more
detailed imagery, revamping the evening’s schedule to provide a more seamless spectator
experience, increased food and beverage facilities and expanded community activities and
entertainment.

4. Last year’s event was a very inclusive community event, with all aspects of the community
engaged in the celebration.  There were approximately 5,000 in attendance.  Historical fireworks,
shot from barges by the beach, were certainly less inclusive due to the beach access
restrictions.  Some community members could go while others could not, not to mention the
issues with intoxication due to the length of day/beach experience to the evening/firework
experience.

5. The reasons to go with a drone show over fireworks was very thought out and strategic.
1. Fire issues at the height of the summer season.  Is it really best practice and sustainable

to throw lite objects into the sky.

ITEM E2



2. Environmental concerns on burnt pyrotechnic fuels falling in the waters and surrounding 
areas. 

3. Wildlife and domestic animal well being. 
4. Here are a couple of news article on the subject and we are not alone in destinations 

making this switch. 
1. https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2022/jun/30/fireworks-july-4-cancelled-

us-south-west-drought 
2. https://www.cnn.com/2022/07/02/weather/4th-of-july-fireworks-canceled-

california-arizona-utah-megadrought/index.html 
3. https://www.sfchronicle.com/travel/article/Tahoe-Fourth-of-July-17275490.php 

6. As we embark on the region wide Lake Tahoe Destination Stewardship Plan, we as a region will 
be asked to make tough decisions on how we manage and sustain the Tahoe region for 
generations to come.  This is one strategy that aligns with that effort, an effort that this 
committee and the TNTNV board are committed to developing. 

 

The IVCB SkyShow committee has developed a comprehensive, custom sponsorship program designed 

to maximize our partners opportunities and leverage their investment in this important event.

 

More information on the IVCB SkyShow can be found here.   

 

https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2022/jun/30/fireworks-july-4-cancelled-us-south-west-drought
https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2022/jun/30/fireworks-july-4-cancelled-us-south-west-drought
https://www.cnn.com/2022/07/02/weather/4th-of-july-fireworks-canceled-california-arizona-utah-megadrought/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/2022/07/02/weather/4th-of-july-fireworks-canceled-california-arizona-utah-megadrought/index.html
https://www.sfchronicle.com/travel/article/Tahoe-Fourth-of-July-17275490.php
https://ivcba.org/events/local-heroes/ivcbskyshow/


P.O. Box 837 
Reno, NV 89504 USA 

t: 775.827.7600 

To: RSCVA Board of Directors 

From: Charles Harris, President & CEO 
Christina Erny, Vice President of Marketing 

Cc: Charlene Bybee, RSCVA Board Chair 

Date: June 15, 2023 

Subject: Review, Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Contract Extensions for BVK, Reno 
Tahoe’s Agency of Record and Partner Agency for Paid Media 

Executive Summary 

BVK has been the contracted Agency of Record for Reno Tahoe since 2016, responsible for the 
development and launch of the current Reno Tahoe Brand while also serving as our trusted partner 
for paid media efforts. Within the scope of services provided by BVK as part of their primary contracts 
and through various ad-hoc projects, BVK has been an integral part of the growth and evolution of 
our marketing efforts and contributed significantly to our success as an organization as we execute 
initiatives to attract overnight visitors to Reno Tahoe while supporting the sustainable growth of our 
communities. Continued engagement with BVK by way of contract extensions for FY24 is 
recommended by staff. 

Background/Analysis 

As the Agency of Record, BVK leads efforts integral to the success of our organization. Within the 
scope of services provided, it is established by contract that: BVK is responsible to further interpret 
existing, recent research; recommend new research to determine psychographic and/or 
demographic audiences; provide strategic, brand message recommendations; and develop 
marketing and advertising concepts to promote tourism to Reno Tahoe USA. 

Under the paid media services agreement, BVK has been responsible for the execution of 
campaigns related to our paid media campaigns for both leisure and meetings and conventions 
(b2b). Paid media buying being our largest budget allocation in FY24, with an approved leisure 
allocation of $5.4M and meetings/conventions allocation of $255K, the work BVK executes within 
the scope of the media buying agreement is of critical importance to the Reno Tahoe mission. Per 
the existing scope of work, services executed include media strategy and planning, media 
negotiations/buying/validation, media optimizations, monthly analysis and reporting, campaign 
wrap-up reporting, status reports, project management, and billing. It is worth noting that all 
organizational goals for which BVK plays an integral role have been met in the previous two fiscal 
years. 

ITEM E3



   

 

   

Specific contract renewal details are currently being refined, but objectives and intent are aligned 
and budget parameters have been established. While staying within the framework and confines of 
the current contracts, we intend to execute strategic changes as part of the contract extension that 
promote operational efficiency, increase visibility and performance monitoring, meaningfully 
correlate efforts with impact, improve cross-channel collaboration, and allow for the evolution of the 
Reno Tahoe brand. As the services provided by BVK qualify as professional services under NRS 
332.115, the renewal and/or extension of the BVK contracts are exempt from the competitive 
bidding requirements of NRS Chapter 332. 

 
Fiscal Impact 

 
Funds for the contracts with BVK for Agency of Record and Paid Media are budgeted in the fiscal year 
2023/2024 marketing budget, which was approved by the Board of Directors May 25, 2023. Contract 
extensions are being developed within the established framework of the current contracts to create 
continuity and alignment with operations in FY23 and will not exceed the limits established within the 
FY24 budget. Combined, the two contracts are expected not to exceed $753,000. 

 

Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends the following motion: The Board moves to approve the authorization of the 
President and CEO to execute agreements with BVK for the extension of current contracts for 
Agency of Record (aka Integrated Marketing Agency) in an amount not to exceed Three Hundred 
and Forty Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($340,000) and Paid Media in an amount not to exceed 
Four Hundred and Thirteen Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($413,000) for a term not to exceed 
12 months and inclusive of a 30-day cancellation clause.  
 
 

















To: RSCVA Board of Directors 

From: Charles Harris, President & CEO 

Christina Erny, Vice President of Marketing 

Cc: Charlene Bybee, RSCVA Board Chair 

Date: June 15, 2023 

Subject: Review, Discussion, and Possible Action to Approve Staff’s Recommendation to 
Award the Request for Proposal 2022-MKT02 for Website Search Engine 
Optimization. 

Executive Summary 

The marketing department issued a request for proposal (RFP 2022-MKT02) for website search 
engine optimization for the www.visitrenotahoe.com website. Staff recommends awarding the 
contract to KPS3, a local Reno agency, in an amount not to exceed $120,000.00 for a contract 
period not to exceed 12 months for the development of strategy, enablement of platforms, 
execution of campaigns, and performance reporting for the organic search channel. 

Background 

RFP 2022-MKT02 for website search engine optimization was released Monday, November 7, 
2022 with the following general scope outlined: The Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors 
Authority (RSCVA) is seeking to contract with an experienced organization for search engine 
optimization (SE0) for the www.visitrenotahoe.com website. The chosen organization will be 
responsible for the development of strategy, enablement of platforms, execution of campaigns, 
and performance reporting for the organic search channel.  

Submissions were due Friday, January 13, 2023. The RSCVA received 12 total proposals. Staff 
established a scoring methodology and sought the input of various individuals as part of an 
internal staff committee, ultimately identifying 4 potential candidates to move forward to a round 
of hybrid in-person/remote presentations. Further evaluation and discussion by the scoring 
committee resulted in a united recommendation to move forward with the development and 
approval of a detailed contractual scope of work with KPS3, a local Reno Tahoe marketing agency. 

Fiscal Impact 

This project is dependent on funding in the FY24 marketing budget. Funds in the amount of 
$120,000 have been allocated as part of the FY24 budget, which was approved by the Board of 
Directors during the meeting on May 25, 2023. Contracts will be developed within the limits of 
the allocated funding.  

ITEM E4



 

 

Recommendation 
 
 

Based on staff’s evaluation of the qualifying proposals received, staff recommends the 
development and approval of a detailed scope of work with KPS3 for services outlined in RFP 2022-
MKT02 in an amount not exceeding One Hundred and Twenty Thousand and No/100ths Dollars 
($120,000.00) and for a duration not to exceed 12 months. 

 

Proposed Motion 
 

Staff Recommends the following motion: The Board moves to approve the authorization of the 
President and CEO to execute agreements with KPS3 for the work described within RFP 2022-
MKT02 for professional services related to website search engine optimization in an amount not 
to exceed One Hundred and Twenty Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($120,000.00) and for a 
duration not to exceed 12 months. 

 



To: RSCVA Board of Directors 

From: Charles Harris, President and CEO 
Christina Erny, Vice President of Marketing 

Cc: Charlene Bybee, RSCVA Board Chair 

Date: June 15, 2023 

Subject:   Review, Discussion and Possible Action to approve Staff’s Recommendation to allocate 
certain expenditures for air service marketing, media, and education initiatives, 
including promotions to acquire, expand or maintain flights targeting airline 
education, long haul service and JetBlue NYC flight, to the FY23 Air Service Fund 

Executive Summary 

In line with the specific direction, initiatives, and goals for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 as outlined in 
the FY23 Annual Business Plan and RSCVA 3-Year Strategic Plan, staff is seeking approval from 
the Board of Directors to allocate certain FY 23 expenditures related to marketing and media 
initiatives to acquire, expand or maintain flights targeting airline education, long haul service 
and JetBlue NYC flight, to the FY 23 Air Service Fund. 

Background 

As part of the Strategic Plan, a key initiative approved by the Board of Directors is to “Work with 
RTAA to maintain and expand year-round air service so that visiting and holding meetings in 
Reno Tahoe is easy and convenient.” 

The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Business Plan as approved by the Board of Directors on July 
14, 2022, includes the following initiative: Maintain and expand air service through sales, 
tourism and media promotions, measured by distributing monies from Air Service Fund to 
acquire, expand or maintain flights targeting airline education, long haul service and JetBlue 
NYC Flight. 

  Screenshot from the FY23 Annual Plan

ITEM E5



 

 

 

 

 
Fiscal Impact 

If approved, staff will allocate monies spent directly on marketing and media initiatives which 
were correlated with air service to the FY23 Air Service Fund, up to $600,000. 

 
Recommendation 

 

Staff recommends the following motion: move to approve the allocation of expenditures to the 
Air Service Fund in FY 23 for marketing and media initiatives to acquire, expand or maintain 
flights targeting airline education, long haul service and JetBlue NYC flight, in an amount not 
to exceed $600,000.    



 
 
 

   

 

To:  Reno Tahoe Board of Directors 

 

From:  Charles Harris, President & CEO 

 
Cc:   Charlene Bybee, RSCVA Board Chair 
 

Date:  May 25, 2023 

 
Subject: Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual 

Business Plan 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
The Board of Directors is being asked to review, discuss and provide feedback on the annual 
business plan draft, which will provide staff with specific direction, initiatives and goals for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023. Once amended, staff will present the completed FY 2023-2024 Annual Plan to 
the board for final approval.  
 
 

Background 
 
Each year, the RSCVA develops and publishes an integrated annual business plan that outlines 
the goals, strategies and tactics that work in unison to deliver on our strategic vision. The 
individual strategies and tactics within the plan are measured, optimized, and reported to the 
Board of Directors on an ongoing basis. The included business plan is based on the Strategic 
Priorities, Initiatives and Tactics in the current three-year Strategic Plan, approved by the Board 
on May 19, 2022.  
 

 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The Board of Directors is being presented with the FY 2023-2024 budget at this meeting. 
Approval of the annual business plan will not incur expenses in addition to the aforementioned 
budget.  
 

 

Recommendation 
 
Staff is recommending the RSCVA Board of Directors make recommendations to the presented 
Annual Plan, with the intent to approve at a later meeting of the Board. 



10000 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 165 

Las Vegas, NV 89135 

PH: (702) 735-4888 FAX: (702) 735-4620 

June 12, 2023 

Charles Harris 
President & CEO 
Reno Sparks Convention & Visitors Bureau 
4001 S. Virginia Street, Suite G 
Reno, NV 89502 

Dear Mr. Harris, 

In response to Ms. Farmer’s email request regarding the completion of Shannon Keel’s second two-year 
term as a member of the RSCVA Board of Directors expiring on June 30, 2023, the Nevada Resort 
Association nominates John East of Jacobs Entertainment for appointment for a two-year term 
beginning in July 2023 ending July 2025.   

You may reach Mr. East by email at jeast@bhwk.com or by contacting his office at (303) 582-6300. 

Per the RSCVA’s request to nominate more than one individual, we are also nominating Matt Denning, 
General Manager of Gold Dust Reno, with Jacobs Entertainment. 

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office at 702-735-4888. 

Sincerely, 

Virginia Valentine 
President 
Nevada Resort Association 

cc:  John East 

ITEM F2

mailto:jeast@bhwk.com


Reno-Sparks 
Convention and Visitors Authority

Interim Financial Report

April 2023



Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority 
Interim Financial Report

April 2023

Table of Contents

 1    

  2    

Financial Summary by Category

Financial Summary by Department  

Transient Lodging Tax Collections and Statistics 3



Revenues
Room Tax Collections 33,555,909$             32,032,004$             28,415,391$             38,029,531$             
Tourism Surcharge 3,862,102 3,946,196 4,272,785 4,795,883
Facilities Revenues 7,628,998 5,666,183 6,894,709 8,461,387
Grants - 2,848,012 - 1,250,000
Other Income 1,440,927 902,999 1,124,974 1,588,101

Total Revenues 46,487,935$          45,395,394$          40,707,859$          54,124,902$          

Operating Expenses (by Category) 
Payroll & Related 10,087,551$             4,232,395$  5,651,115$  15,951,479$             
Supplies & Services 8,553,987 11,374,368 11,855,058 10,100,345 
Travel & Entertainment 698,974 371,482 683,787 975,164 
Promotion & Advertising 8,478,613 5,484,083 7,882,778 13,295,055 
Special Projects 1,719,907 936,379 1,438,284 3,375,250
Other 115,732 53,818 82,238 107,702 

Total Operating Expenses 29,654,764$          22,452,525$          27,593,261$          43,804,994$          

Non-Operating Expenses/General Fund Transfers Out
Incline Village/Crystal Bay Apportionment 2,014,478$  1,896,294$  1,520,723$  2,414,809$            
Debt Service Transfers 6,825,125 6,714,708 10,674,752 8,190,150               
Capital Improvements 2,596,217 734,912 2,074,450 11,012,992            
Contingency - - - 200,000 

Total Non-Operating Expenses/Transfers 11,435,820$          9,345,914$            14,269,925$          21,817,952$          

Net Revenues (Expenses) 5,397,351$            13,596,955$          (1,155,326)$           (11,498,043)$         

RENO-SPARKS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
 Financial Summary by Category

2019
(Pre-Pandemic) 

Ten Month Period Ended April 30, Total Budget 
(Augmented) 

Fiscal Year 
2023 

2023 2022

1



Revenues
Room Tax Collections 33,555,909$             32,032,004$             28,415,391$             38,029,531$             
Tourism Surcharge 3,862,102 3,946,196 4,272,785 4,795,883 
Facilities 7,628,998 5,666,183 6,894,709 8,461,387 
Grants - 2,848,012 - 1,250,000
Other Income 1,440,927 902,999 1,124,974 1,588,101

Total Revenues 46,487,935            45,395,394            40,707,859            54,124,902            

Operating Expenses (by Department) 
Facilities Operations  11,382,553 9,825,626 10,582,732 14,454,139 
Marketing 9,262,917 5,999,496 8,461,968 15,047,641 
Sales 5,234,697 3,755,684 5,559,838 8,767,312 
General Government, Finance, and Administrative 3,774,597 2,871,718 2,988,723 5,534,808 

Total Operating Expenses 29,654,764            22,452,525            27,593,261            43,803,900            

Non-Operating Expenses/General Fund Transfers Out
Incline Village/Crystal Bay Room Tax Apportionment 2,014,478 1,896,294 1,520,723 2,414,809 
Debt Service Transfers 6,825,125 6,714,708 10,674,752 8,190,150 
Capital Improvements 2,596,217 734,912 2,074,450 11,012,992 
Contingency - - - 200,000 

Total Non-Operating Expenses/Transfers 11,435,820            9,345,914               14,269,925            21,817,952            

Net Revenues (Expenses) 5,397,351$            13,596,955$          (1,155,326)$           (11,496,949)$         

RENO-SPARKS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
 Financial Summary by Department 

2022 2019
(Pre-Pandemic) 2023

Ten Month Period Ended April 30, Total Budget 
(Augmented) 

Fiscal Year 
2023 

2



2023 2022 $ %

Room Tax Collections
Lodging (6 5/8%) 25,774,828$  24,604,293$  1,170,535$  4.8%
Convention Center (2%) 7,781,080 7,427,711 353,369 4.8%
Tourism Surcharge 3,862,102 3,946,196 (84,094) (2.1%)

Total Tax Collections 37,418,011$              35,978,200$              1,439,810$  4.0%

Total Taxable Room Revenues 389,116,750$           371,332,744$           17,784,006$              4.8%

Average Rate - Cash 147.62$ 140.26$ 7.37$  5.3%

Occupied Rooms
Cash 2,635,876 2,647,497 (11,621) (0.4%)
Comp 665,406 638,740 26,666 4.2%
28 Day 915,618 1,008,567 (92,949) (9.2%)

Total Occupied Rooms 4,216,900 4,294,804 (77,904) (1.8%)

Total Percentage of Occupancy 64.6% 65.0% (0.4) (0.7%)

Total Taxable Room Revenues by Tax District
Reno B (Suburban Reno) 180,834,336$ 173,470,464$ 7,363,872$  4.2%
Reno D (Downtown Reno) 89,282,623$  84,532,910$  4,749,713$  5.6%
Reno E (1 Mile Radius from Downtown) 10,982,725$  9,558,016$  1,424,710$  14.9%
Washoe A (Washoe County (excluding Incline Village) 750,591$ 834,896$ (84,305)$  (10.1%)
Washoe B (Incline Village) 56,823,179$  53,237,508$  3,585,672$  6.7%
Sparks 50,443,295$  49,698,950$  744,345$ 1.5%

Ten Month Period Ended April 30,

Transient Lodging Tax Collections and Statistics
RENO-SPARKS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

Increase (Decrease)

3


	Agenda
	Item E1 - Track Finance Options
	Item E2 - SkyShow Request
	Item E3 - BVK Contract Extension
	Item E4 - RFP SEO
	Item E5 - Air Service Fund- Marketing
	Item F2 - NRA Nomination



